
The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life through    
positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts. 

AGENDA 

SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 
REMOTE MEETING HELD VIA TELECONFERENCE 

The President of the Board of Commissioners has determined that an in-person meeting or a meeting 
conducted pursuant to the Open Meetings Act is not practical or prudent because of the COVID-19 disaster. 

(As permitted by Public Act 101-0640) 

Citizens may participate in the zoom meeting by going to the following web address: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85889942842?pwd=TWdrNXUxS3NpbURPdmgrd2xpMHBVUT09 

For online video access, please use the following Meeting ID and Password when prompted: 
Meeting ID: 858 8994 2842 
Passcode: 955382 

Alternatively, the meeting may be accessed by telephone at: 
1-312-626-6799, If prompted for the following items, please enter:
Meeting ID: 858 8994 2842, followed by the # symbol
Password: 955382, followed by the # symbol

Citizens will be offered an opportunity to speak to the Board during the public comment portion. To facilitate 
this and not have individuals speaking over one another, the Park District kindly requests that individuals 
wishing to address the Board via the conference line during public comment notify the Park District via email, 
as noted below, of their intent to address the Board.  Alternatively, citizens may submit public comments by 
email prior to the Board meeting, to be announced by the Park Board President during the public comment 
portion of the meeting. Email submissions (notice of intent to speak or comment via email) should be submitted 
by Noon on Wednesday, October 25, 2023, and sent to Sarah.Sandquist@champaignparks.org. 

Wednesday, October 25, 2023 
5:30 p.m. 

A. CALL TO ORDER

B. PRESENTATIONS

1. CUrbanism – Sean Williams; Permaculture, Food Forests, and Native Plantings

C. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC

D. OLD BUSINESS

1. Approval of Easement with i3 Broadband at Thompson Park
Staff recommends approval of an easement for i3 Broadband at Thompson Park pending
legal description inclusion and fee collection.

E. NEW BUSINESS

1. Approval of a Resolution in Recognition of Shannon Walter, Program Manager

2. Approval of Bid for Heritage Park Improvements Project
Staff recommends awarding the contract to lowest bidder, Concrete Inc of Thomasboro IL, 
for $17,360.00 and authorizing the Executive Director to enter into the contract. 

Link

Link

Link

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85889942842?pwd=TWdrNXUxS3NpbURPdmgrd2xpMHBVUT09
mailto:Sarah.Sandquist@champaignparks.org


The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life through    
positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts. 

Special Board Meeting 
October 25, 2023  
Page 2 

3. Approval of a Resolution Appointing Sarah Dixon to the Board of Directors of the
Champaign Parks Foundation
Staff recommend approval of a resolution appointing Sarah Dixon to the Champaign Parks
Foundation for a two-year term that expires in 2025.

4. Approval Ordinance No. 672 to Address Scrivener’s Errors

F. DISCUSSION

1. FY25 Capital Budget and the 2025-2034 Capital Improvement Plan
2. Pipeline Trail Expansion/ Projects Update

G. ADJOURN

Link

Link

Link



The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life through 
positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts.  

 

 

 

REPORT TO PARK BOARD 

 

FROM: Sarah Sandquist, Executive Director 

 

DATE: October 19, 2023 

 

SUBJECT: i3 Broadband Easement at Thompson Park 

 

Background 

In July, i3 Broadband LLC made a request to install a fiber optic distribution point at the 

northwest corner of Thompson Park. After considering a few different Park District properties 

north of Bradley Avenue, the location within Thompson Park is the best suited for all parties. 

 

Prior Board Action 

September 13, 2023, Regular Board Meeting – The Board tabled approval of the easement. 

 

Budget Impact 

Park District will receive reimbursement for Attorney's fee and Champaign County Clerk 

recording fee in accordance with CPD ordinance 459. 

 

Recommended Action 

The easement agreement (attached) was authored by Park District Attorney; Park District is 

awaiting legal description from i3 Broadband to include with exhibit. Staff recommends granting 

the easement request and entering into the easement agreement with i3 Broadband pending 

legal description inclusion and fee collection as described herein. 

 

Prepared by:      Reviewed by: 

 

 

Andrew Weiss      Sarah Sandquist 

Director of Planning     Executive Director 



 

 Page 1 of 5 
4865-8652-8637, v. 1 

 

 
  

  

EASEMENT 
 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, this _______ day of _____________________, 2023, that the 
CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT, a municipal corporation of the County of Champaign and State of Illinois, 
its successors and assigns, whether one or more and whether an individual, individuals, a corporation or 
other legal entity, hereinafter referred to as Grantor, for and in consideration of the sum of One and 
No/100ths Dollars ($1.00) and other valuable consideration in hand paid, the receipt of which is hereby 
acknowledged, does hereby grant unto i3 Broadband,LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, 602 High 
Point Ln, East Peoria, IL  61611, its successors, assigns, licensees, agents, lessees, contractors, sub-
contractors, licensees, and tenants, hereinafter referred to as Grantee, a ninety-nine (99) year right and 
easement to construct, reconstruct, extend, use, operate, maintain, inspect, and examine communications 
facilities, including but not limited to an above-ground fiber optic cabinet and connections thereto, together 
with all such underground electric and communication  line or lines consisting of conduit, hardware, wire, 
cables fixtures, appliances, equipment, and other appurtenances thereto, upon, over, across, and under 
the following described land in Champaign County, Illinois, which is depicted on the map attached hereto 
as Exhibit A, to-wit: 

 
Property Description: 

 
See Attached Exhibit B 
 
 
TAX ID NUMBER:  41-20-02-455-022 
 

together with all rights reasonably implied by and incidental to the exercise and enjoyment of said easement 
rights, including without limitation the right of ingress and egress to and over the above described easement 
area and premises of Grantor adjoining the same, for all purposes herein stated; together with the right 
upon Grantor’s written approval, which shall not be unreasonably withheld, to  trim, control, cut and remove 
or cause to be removed at any time and from time to time, by any means, any and all brush, bushes, 
saplings, trees, roots, undergrowth, rock, overhanging branches and other obstructions upon, over and 
under the surface of said easement area and of the premises of Grantor adjoining the same deemed by 
Grantee to interfere with the exercise and enjoyment of Grantee’s rights hereunder, or endanger the safety 
of said facilities; and the right to license, permit or otherwise agree to the use or occupancy of said easement 
or any portion thereof or of said facilities by any other person, association or corporation for the purposes 
hereinabove set out; and with the further right to remove at any time and from time to time, any or all of the 
said line or lines, and appurtenances thereto located upon, over, across and under said land by virtue 
hereof. 
 

   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

 Page 2 of 5 
4865-8652-8637, v. 1 

 Grantee shall be responsible for actual damages occurring on the herein described property as a 
result of the construction, operation, maintenance or repair of Grantee’s facilities and shall reimburse the 
owner thereof for such loss or damages.   
 
 Grantor, for itself, its successors and assigns, does hereby covenant unto Grantee, (1) that Grantor 
is the owner of the above-described land and has full right and authority validly to grant this easement, (2) 
that Grantee may quietly enjoy the premises for the purposes herein stated, and (3) that Grantor will not 
create or permit any building or other obstruction or condition of any kind or character upon Grantor’s 
premises that will interfere with the Grantee’s exercise and enjoyment of the easement rights hereinabove 
conveyed. 
 

Except as specifically provided otherwise herein, Grantor, for itself and Grantor's successors and 
assigns, hereby expressly reserves the right to use and enjoy the remainder of the easement area for any 
purpose, provided such use and enjoyment by Grantor shall not interfere with the use thereof by Grantee as 
permitted in this Agreement. 

 
The easement shall be for a period of ninety-nine (99) years unless and until terminated as hereafter 

provided.  This easement shall terminate upon Grantee's uncured breach of any condition or uncured default 
in the performance of any of its covenants or agreements herein set forth.  In the event of Grantee’s breach of 
any condition or default hereunder, Grantor shall provide Grantee written notice of such breach or default.  If 
Grantee fails to cure such breach or default within sixty (60) days after written notice of such breach or default 
from Grantor, Grantor shall have the right, upon written notice of termination to Grantee, to terminate this 
easement.  Upon termination of this easement, all rights herein granted shall revert to Grantor, its successors 
or assigns, and, if requested, Grantee shall forthwith execute and deliver to Grantor, or Grantor's successors 
or assigns, any instrument of termination or release and to take such other and further action as may be 
reasonably required by Grantor to evidence and memorialize such termination and reversion of this easement.  
Notwithstanding such termination of this easement, Grantee shall remain liable to Grantor, and Grantor's 
successors and assigns, for all of Grantee's covenants and obligations which expressly or are necessarily 
inferred to survive such termination of this easement as provided herein. 

 
The Grantee shall keep any equipment used or brought on the Grantor’s property under its absolute 

and complete control at all times, and said equipment shall be used at the sole risk of the Grantee. The Grantor 
shall not be responsible in any manner for theft or damage to the equipment or other property of the Grantee.  
The Grantee agrees that it shall notify Grantor at least five (5) days prior to the beginning of any construction, 
repair, or maintenance in, over or upon the Grantor’s property, such notice to include a description of the 
construction, repair or maintenance to be performed and an estimate of the duration of such work. If Grantee 
believes that a repair is an emergency, then Grantee can begin repairs immediately and shall notify the Grantor 
of the necessity of such work at that time.  The Grantor agrees to cooperate with Grantee to allow Grantee to 
obtain all necessary permits for the construction, repair or maintenance of the communications facility to allow 
for the relocation of the communications facility from its current location to the easement area described above. 

 
Upon completion of the installation of the telecommunication facilities, Grantee shall, at Grantee's sole 

cost and expense, restore and replace the surface of the easement area to a condition as near as possible to 
that condition which existed prior to the commencement of such construction, including surface grading, 
seeding, shrubbery, and trees. Grantee shall repair the area within a reasonable time after any sink holes, soil 
erosion, sloughing or impairment to natural drainage.  In the event that Grantee ever ceases utilizing or  
abandons the telecommunication facilities, then in such event Grantee shall, at its sole cost and expense, 
remove the telecommunication facilities and other improvements and appurtenances associated therewith 
made at the easement site and return the easement area to substantially the same condition as it was prior 
to the grant of the easement herein; provided that, conduit installed pursuant to this Agreement may remain 
in place.  In the event Grantee fails to undertake such removal and remediation within one hundred eighty 
(180) days after such cessation or abandonment, Grantor may, in its sole discretion, undertake such 
removal and remediation obligations of the Grantee and charge and collect the cost thereof from Grantee. 
Such written acknowledgement of cessation of use or abandonment shall constitute termination as 
otherwise set forth herein; provided that, in such event, Grantee shall remain obligated for removal and 
remediation.  Any acknowledgment by Grantee of cessation of use or abandonment of the 
telecommunication facilities shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

 



 

 Page 3 of 5 
4865-8652-8637, v. 1 

 Grantee covenants and agrees that Grantee shall be solely responsible for, and shall reimburse 
and pay Grantor, and Grantor’s successors and assigns, for all losses and damages incurred by Grantor 
on the easement area, areas of ingress and egress or any other property of Grantor which is caused by 
Grantee’s exercise of its rights herein granted, including without limitation, any damage to Grantor’s land or 
property by reason of the initial installation, improvement, repair, removal, operation and maintenance of the 
improvement, and the terms and conditions hereinabove set forth shall be binding upon the successors and 
assigns of the Grantee; provided that, Grantee shall be permitted to keep the easement area clear of trees, 
undergrowth, brush and prohibited obstructions.  
 
 The Grantee shall indemnify, defend, and hold the Grantor and its successors and assigns harmless 
from any and all claims, including any loss, damage, expense, costs, and attorneys’ fees for damages to 
person or property made by anyone arising out of any act or omission on the part of Grantee’s employees, 
contractors, subcontractors, agents or representatives, and in connection therewith, shall provide Grantor with 
satisfactory evidence of commercial general liability insurance with limits of not less than $1,000,000.00 
naming the Grantor as an additional insured thereon together with suitable rider or endorsement.  Grantee 
and its successors or assigns shall maintain such insurance for the duration of the term hereof and any 
subsequent renewals, if applicable. 
 
 Grantee covenants, acknowledges, and agrees that it shall not permit any mechanic's liens, 
encumbrances, or any other liens to be attached to or filed against the easement area or any other portion 
of Grantor’s real estate, or any improvements thereon which results from or arise out of any act or work 
performed by Grantee or any of Grantee's employees, contractors, subcontractors, agents or 
representatives in the construction, installation, operation, maintenance, repair, relocation, replacement or 
removal of the telecommunication facilities and other improvements and appurtenances associated 
therewith, or in the performance of any other right or obligation of Grantee arising hereunder.  In the event 
any such lien is attached to or filed against the easement area or any other portion of Grantor’s real estate 
or any improvement thereon, then in addition to any other right or remedy of Grantor at law or equity, 
Grantor may, but shall not be obligated to, discharge the same. Any amount paid by Grantor for any of the 
aforesaid purposes shall be paid by Grantee to Grantor immediately on demand.  Any lien or encumbrance 
attached to or filed against the easement area, or any other portion of Grantor’s real estate, or any 
improvement thereon as a result of Grantee's operations hereunder shall be immediately paid, released or 
bonded over by Grantee in a manner acceptable to Grantor.  Grantee shall be responsible for reasonable 
attorney’s fees incurred by the Grantor in obtaining the removal of any lien which results from the activities 
and operations of Grantee. 
 

Any notice, demand, or other communication to be given or required pursuant to the terms hereof 
shall be in writing and delivered by personal service, sent by registered or certified mail (with an additional 
copy sent by regular U.S. Mail), return receipt requested with postage prepaid, or by a nationally recognized 
overnight express courier (freight prepaid) addressed as follows or to such other address as the Parties 
may designate in writing from time to time: 

 
If to Grantor at: Champaign Park District  
  Attn:  Executive Director 
  706 Kenwood Road       
  Champaign, IL 61821 
 
With a Copy to: Guy C. Hall, Esq. 
  Robbins, Schwartz, Nicholas, Lifton & Taylor, Ltd.  
  301 N. Neil Street, Suite 400 
  Champaign, IL  61820   
 
If to Grantee:   3 Broadband, LLC 
  Attn:  ______________________ 
  602 High Point Ln 
  East Peoria, IL  61611 
 

Any such notice, demand, request, or other communication shall be deemed given upon hand delivery or 
three (3) days after it is sent as provided for herein. 



 

 Page 4 of 5 
4865-8652-8637, v. 1 

 
 If any term or provision of this Agreement, or the application thereof, to any person or circumstance 
shall, to any extent, be deemed by any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, the 
remainder of this Agreement, or the application of such term or provision to persons or circumstances other 
than those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected thereby, and each term and 
provision of this Agreement shall be valid and enforced as permitted by law. 
 
 Failure to insist upon strict compliance with any of the terms, covenants, or conditions of this 
Agreement shall not be deemed a waiver of that term, covenant, or condition, nor shall any waiver or 
relinquishment of any right or power at any one time or times be deemed a waiver or relinquishment of the right 
or power at all or any other times.  
 
 This Agreement and the rights and obligations of the parties hereto shall be interpreted, construed and 
enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Illinois, without giving effect to the principles of conflict of 
laws, and the venue for any claim or cause of action brought to enforce or determine the rights and obligations 
of either party arising hereunder shall be the state court of competent jurisdiction located in Champaign County, 
Illinois. 
 
 The terms and provisions of this Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of Grantor 
and Grantee and their respective successors and assigns.  This Agreement together with exhibits which are 
attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein embodies the entire agreement between the parties 
hereto with respect to the subject matter contained herein, and supersedes and any and all prior agreements, 
representations, warranties, or statements which may have been made between the parties prior to the date 
hereof, whether express, implied, written, verbal, concerning the subject matter hereof and this Agreement 
shall not be modified or amended except by written instrument executed by each party hereto.  
 
 Grantee shall promptly provide Grantor with a copy of this document with recording information set 
forth thereon. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantor and Grantee have caused this instrument to be executed 
effective as of the _____ day of ______________, 2023. 
 
GRANTOR:       
 
Champaign Park District, an Illinois     
Municipal corporation      
 
By: _______________________________   
       _______________________________    
      Its ____________________________   
       
 
ATTEST:       
 
By: _______________________________   
       ___________________, Secretary                       
 
 
 
 
STATE OF ILLINOIS  ) 
                                   )  SS. 
COUNTY OF CHAMPAIGN ) 
 
 I, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said County, in the State aforesaid, DO HEREBY 
CERTIFY that ________________________________ and ___________________________, personally 
known to me to be the _____________________ and  Secretary of the Champaign Park District, an Illinois 
municipal corporation, and the same persons whose names are subscribed to the foregoing instrument, 



 

 Page 5 of 5 
4865-8652-8637, v. 1 

appeared before me this day in person and acknowledged that they signed, sealed and delivered the said 
instrument as their respective free and voluntary act, for the uses and purposes therein set forth. 
  
GIVEN under my hand and Notarial Seal, this ______day of __________________, 2023. 
 
      ________________________________________ 
                               Notary Public 
 

 
 
i3 Broadband, LLC 
a Delaware limited liability company 
 
By: _______________________________   
      _______________________________          
      Its ____________________________        
       
 
ATTEST:       
 
By: _______________________________   
       _______________________ 
 
 
STATE OF ____________ ) 
                                   )  SS.  
COUNTY OF ___________ ) 
 
 I, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said County, in the State aforesaid, DO HEREBY 
CERTIFY that ________________________________ and ___________________________, personally 
known to me to be the _____________________ and  _______________________ of i3 Broadband, LLC, a 
Delaware limited liability company, and the same persons whose names are subscribed to the foregoing 
instrument, appeared before me this day in person and acknowledged that they signed, sealed and delivered 
the said instrument in such capacity and with such authority and as their respective free and voluntary act, for 
the uses and purposes therein set forth. 
 
 GIVEN under my hand and Notarial Seal, this ______day of __________________, 2023. 
 
      ________________________________________ 
         Notary Public 

 
Prepared by: 
Guy C. Hall 
Attorney at Law 
Robbins, Schwartz, Nicholas,  
   Lifton & Taylor, Ltd.  
301 N. Neil Street, Suite 400 
Champaign, IL  61820 
(217) 363-3040 
ghall@robbins-schwartz.com  
ARDC:  6185382   

 
 

 
Return to:   Champaign Park District, 706 Kenwood Road, Champaign, IL  61821   

mailto:ghall@robbins-schwartz.com


10L

1L

2L

3L

4L 5L

6L

7L

8L

9L

LINE TABLE
LINE

1L

2L

3L

4L

5L

6L

7L

8L

9L

10L

LENGTH BEARING

DRAWN:

REVIEWED:
DATE:

PROJECT NO.:

9/11/2023
JDA

1 of 2

EAT
0210865.00COMMUNICATIONS FACILITY EASEMENT

GROUP
2211 WEST BRADLEY AVENUE
CHAMPAIGN, ILLINOIS  61821
(217) 352-7408 / info@f-w.com

0

U.S. SURVEY FEET
SCALE: 1"=20'

10 20

LOT 181
NORTHWOOD FOURTH ADDITION

SOUTHEAST QUARTER SECTION 2
TOWNSHIP 19 NORTH, RANGE 8 EAST, 3rd P.M.

CITY OF CHAMPAIGN, CHAMPAIGN COUNTY, ILLINOIS

EXHIBIT A



DRAWN:

REVIEWED:
DATE:

PROJECT NO.:

9/11/2023
JDA

1 of 2

EAT
0210865.00COMMUNICATIONS FACILITY EASEMENT

GROUP
2211 WEST BRADLEY AVENUE
CHAMPAIGN, ILLINOIS  61821
(217) 352-7408 / info@f-w.com

LOT 181
NORTHWOOD FOURTH ADDITION

SOUTHEAST QUARTER SECTION 2
TOWNSHIP 19 NORTH, RANGE 8 EAST, 3rd P.M.

CITY OF CHAMPAIGN, CHAMPAIGN COUNTY, ILLINOIS





The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life through 
positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REPORT TO PARK BOARD 
 
FROM: Sarah Sandquist, Executive Director 
 
DATE: October 18, 2023 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution in Recognition of Shannon Walter, Program Manager 
 
 
Background 
Staff have prepared a resolution to recognize Shannon Walter for her heroic act of performing life 
saving CPR on a Champaign resident in need. 
 
Shannon Walter has been an American Heart Association Heartsaver Instructor for the Champaign 
Park District for 8+ years and has certif ied hundreds of staff on First Aid, AED, and CPR. In addition to 
certifying staff, she has been an advocate of downloading and using the PulsePoint app, which she 
used to respond to an alert and preserve a precious life. 
 

Staff have prepared a resolution to honor Shannon Walter for the Board’s consideration and approval. 
Additionally, staff will create an award to recognize Ms. Walter, support her advocacy efforts, and 
enhance the CPR program that she has led both in training and by example. 
 
Recommended Action 
Staff recommend approval of a resolution in recognition of Shannon Walter, Programs Manager.  
 
 
 
Prepared by:       Reviewed by:  

 
 
  
Jimmy Gleason                              Sarah Sandquist 
Director of Revenue Facilities                  Executive Director    



Champaign Park District 
 

RESOLUTION 
 
WHEREAS, Shannon Walter, a dedicated American Heart Association Heartsaver Instructor for the 
Champaign Park District since January of 2015, has demonstrated exceptional dedication to life-saving 
skills; and 
 

WHEREAS, Shannon Walter has certified hundreds of part and full-time District employees on First Aid, 
CPR, and AED skills; and 
 

WHEREAS, Shannon Walter, in a moment of extraordinary heroism, utilized the PulsePoint app to locate 

and perform life-saving CPR on a Champaign resident in need; and 

 

WHEREAS, Shannon Walter's swift and effective response resulted in the preservation of a precious life, 

underscoring the vital importance of CPR training and the use of technology in emergency situations;  

and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners of the Champaign Park District, 

extend our heartfelt appreciation to Shannon Walter for her selfless and courageous act of using her 

expertise and the PulsePoint app to save a fellow resident's life; and 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners of the Champaign Park District commends 

Shannon Walter for her dedication to promoting heart health and for setting a remarkable example of 

community service, preparedness, and compassion. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Board of Commissioners of the Champaign Park District hereby presents this 

resolution in recognition of Shannon Walter's heroism and commitment to making Champaign a safer 

and more compassionate place to live, work, and play. 

 
APPROVED by the President and Board of Commissioner of the Champaign Park District this 25th day of 
October 2023. 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
By:______________________________  By:______________________________ 

Jarrod Scheunemann, Secretary   Craig Hays, President   
   



 
 

The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life through 
positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts.  

 
 
 
REPORT TO PARK BOARD 
 
FROM: Sarah Sandquist, Executive Director 
 
DATE: October 17, 2023 
 
SUBJECT: Heritage Park ADA Parking and Accessible Path 
 
Background 
Since its founding in 1974 Heritage Park has not had ADA accessible parking nor ADA access 
to the trail, both of which are recognized deficits in the District’s ADA Transition Plan.  This 
project makes the parking lot, the Heritage Park walkway, and the Greenbelt Bikeway fully 
accessible.  
 
Prior Board Action 
January 11,2023 Regular Board Meeting—Board approved FYE 24 Capital Budget. 
 
Bid Results 
Sealed bids were opened 1:00 p.m., Friday, October 6, 2023 with results as shown: 
 

Bidding Contractor Bid ($) 

Concrete Inc* 17,360.00 

Duce Construction 20,900.00 

Mid Illinois Concrete 23,535.15 

A + A Concrete 27,756.00 

Stark Excavating Inc 29,425.00 

Feutz Contractors Inc 29,950.00 

Cross Construction 30,700.00 

*The low bidder has a couple prevailing wage issues, in all other respects the bidder appears to be responsible . 
 
Budget Impact 
The budget for "Heritage Park Pollinator Area, Sidewalks and Parking" is $22,900.00.  The 
scope includes ADA parking, an accessible path to the walkway system, and a pollinator area 
with seating. The pollinator seating area was completed in August by A&R Services for 
$10,390.80.  The Champaign Parks Foundation received a $2,500 private donation towards that 
project which leaves a balance of $15,009.20.  Staff are recommending the $2,350.80 overage 
be financed through the District ADA Fund.  
 
Recommendation 
Staff recommends awarding the contract to lowest bidder, Concrete Inc of Thomasboro IL, for 
$17,360.00 and authorizing the Executive Director to enter into the contract.  
 
Prepared by:      Reviewed by: 
Andrew Weiss      Sarah Sandquist, CPRE 
Park Planner      Executive Director 







_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life through 

positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts. 

 

 

REPORT TO PARK BOARD 
 

FROM: Sarah Sandquist, Executive Director 
 
DATE: October 25, 2023 
 
SUBJECT:   Foundation Board Member Appointee 
 

Background 
Currently there are two vacancies on the Foundation Board, one three-year term and one two-year term. Staff 
and Board members have been actively seeking new members to serve-members who are willing to help fulfill 
the mission of providing philanthropic support for the Champaign Park District. Upon receiving a 
recommendation from Board Member Heiser, he and Laura Auteberry had the opportunity to meet with 
prospective board member, Sarah Dixon, whose information is presented below.   
 
Employer    
Senior Gift Administration Specialist, University of Illinois Foundation 
 
Boards and committees  
Phi Mu Fraternity Chapter Advisor   5/18-5/22 
   New Member Education Advisor 9/16-5/18 
Young Professionals of C-U     10/17-12/19 
   
Education/Training/Certificates 
Bachelor’s in History from the University of Illinois, Urbana-Champaign 
 
Skills/Experience and Interests 
Special events, outreach and advocacy, community service, education and instruction with a strong interest in 
getting her friends involved in fundraising to serve the park district.  
 
Prior Board Action 
N/A 
 
Budget Impact 
None 
 

Recommended Action   
During their October 16, 2023 regular meeting, the Champaign Parks Foundation Board of Directors voted 
unanimously to forward Sarah Dixon’s name to the Champaign Park District Board of Commissioners for 
consideration of appointment to the Champaign Parks Foundation Board of Directors, for the remainder of a 
two-year term expiring May, 2025.   
 

Prepared by:       Reviewed by: 
     
Laura C. Auteberry      Jarrod Scheunemann 
Development Director      Director of Administrative Services 

     



RESOLUTION 
APPOINTING DIRECTOR 

TO THE CHAMPAIGN PARKS FOUNDATION 

WHEREAS, the Champaign Park District Board of Commissioners formed the 
Champaign Parks Foundation, a not for profit corporation, duly authorized to transact 
business in the State of Illinois; 

WHEREAS, the Champaign Parks Foundation was formed for the purpose of 
creating and carrying out a capital campaign and accepting and managing donations 
and gifts for the benefit of the Champaign Park District, including without limitation, land, 
cash and marketable securities; 

WHEREAS, the Champaign Park District's appointed Commissioner liaison and 
Executive Director serve on the Board of Directors as voting members in addition to the 
other appointed Board members; 

WHEREAS, the Champaign Park District's Board of Commissioners is to appoint 
Champaign Parks Foundation Board members to serve terms as set forth in the bylaws; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners has contacted community members 
who have shown an interest in the success of the Champaign Park District, its facilities 
and services, as well as serving on the Champaign Parks Foundation Board of 
Directors. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Champaign Park District Board 
of Commissioners hereby appoints Sarah Dixon for the remainder of a two-year term 
expiring in May of 2025.

APPROVED by the Board of Commissioners of the Champaign Park District this 
25th day of October 2023.

Craig W. Hays President Jarrod Scheunemann, Secretary 



 

1 

 
4869-4655-4220, v. 1 

CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 672 
 
AN ORDINANCE TO ADDRESS SCRIVENER’S ERRORS 

 
WHEREAS the Champaign Park District (Park District) is an Illinois Municipal 

corporation operating within territory predominantly in the City of Champaign, Champaign 
County, Illinois; and 

 
WHEREAS, from time to time, the Park District enacts ordinances, approves policies, 

enters into agreements, and undertakes all necessary rules, regulations, and actions for the 
proper management and conduct of the business of the Park District, including the 
governance and protection of parks, boulevards, and driveways as well as other property 
under its jurisdiction, and to effectuate the objects for which park districts are formed pursuant 
to the Illinois Park District Code; and     

 
WHEREAS, from time to time the Park District may enact and approve ordinances, 

resolutions, rules, policies, and minutes, and enter into agreements wherein there are 
unintended scrivener’s errors; and 

 
WHEREAS, in order to effectuate the purposes of the Park District and enable the 

efficient administration of its affairs, the Champaign Park District Board of Commissioners 
pursuant to the recitals set forth herein, which shall be deemed findings and part of this 
ordinance, determines, adopts, and ordains as follows: 

 
A. That the Park District president, vice-president, board secretary, and assistant 

board secretary are hereby each individually authorized to correct scrivener’s 
errors in any ordinances, resolutions, rules, policies, agreements, minutes and 
other documents that have been acted upon by the Park District in order to correct 
scrivener’s errors in the Park District’s ordinances, resolutions, rules, policies, 
agreements, minutes, and other documents adopted or approved by the Board of 
Commissioners without the need for readoption of such documents by the Board 
of Commissioners.  
  

B. For the purposes of this ordinance, a scrivener’s error includes one (1) or more of 
the following:  

 
1. A misspelling; 
2. A grammatical error; 
3. A numbering error;  
4. A special character error; 
5. A cross-referencing error; or  
6. An inconsistency with any rules of style adopted by the Champaign Park 

District. 
   

C. A correction to an ordinance, resolution, rule, policy, agreement, minutes, or other 
documents shall be accompanied by a scrivener’s informational note on any such 
corrected document.  Any such correction shall be reported within thirty (30) days 
of such correction in writing or at a regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners.   
  



 

2 

 
4869-4655-4220, v. 1 

D. The corrections to complete sections of any such ordinances, resolutions, rules, 
policies, agreements, minutes, and other documents shall be noted therein.   

 
E. When an ordinance that has been placed on a meeting agenda contains 

typographical or non-substantive syntactical errors, the ordinance may be 
corrected by the board secretary prior to or after adoption or vote without formal 
amendment; provided however, that such changes shall not alter the effect 
intended by the Board of Commissioners.  Changes shall be made upon the 
original document included with the agenda, dated, and initiated by the board 
secretary, and if necessary, the agenda version of any such item shall be retyped 
by the board secretary and re-executed by the presiding officer.  Such corrected 
document shall become the original document.  The Board of Commissioners shall 
be provided written notice of such changes by the board secretary within fourteen 
(14) days after such correction or change. 

 
 
WHEREAS, the Champaign Park District Board of Commissioners has determined it 

is in the best interests of the Park District to adopt this ordinance; and 
 
WHEREAS, this Ordinance shall be effective immediately upon its passage, 

approval, publication as provided by applicable law. 
 
PASSED, ADOPTED, AND APPROVED this ____ day of ____________, 2023.  

 
 
APPROVED: 
 
________________________________ 
Craig W. Hays, President 
 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Jarrod Scheunemann, Secretary 

  
 



The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance the quality of life through positive 
experiences in parks and recreation in our community. 

 

 

 
 

REPORT TO PARK BOARD 

 

FROM: Sarah Sandquist, Executive Director 

 

DATE: October 18, 2023 

 

SUBJECT: Pipeline Trail Expansion  

 

Background 

In 2007 the Champaign Park District (CPD) began design and construction of the one-mile 

Pipeline Trail through the Ironwood and Trails of Brittany subdivisions between Windsor Road 

and Kirby Avenue. The Pipeline Trail is built upon CPD property that encompasses portions of 

Marathon Pipe Line's petroleum product delivery pipeline that ultimately connects to Marathon's 

bulk fuel storage facility at the southwest corner of Staley Road and Springfield Avenue. In 2011 

a Letter of Understanding (Attachment 1) between Marathon Pipe Line, CPD, and the City of 

Champaign (City) was authorized to guide future development of multi-use recreational trails 

within Marathon Pipe Line's easement. Among the principal reasons is to keep land ownership 

contiguous with one party, as detailed in items 10 and 11 within the letter. The City reported 

recent development along the petroleum easement within the Legends development 

(Attachment 2) north of Curtis Road; staff asked their Planning and Development Department to 

provide a summary (Attachment 3) to the CPD as it relates to item 6 in the Letter of 

Understanding. 

 

Discussion 

Staff is seeking consensus and direction regarding the future of the Pipeline Trail through the 

Legends development with respect to the Letter of Understanding between Marathon Pipe Line, 

City of Champaign, and Champaign Park District, as well as the Champaign Trails Plan 

approved in 2011. 

 

Prepared by:       Reviewed by:     

 

 

Andrew Weiss       Sarah Sandquist 

Park Planner       Executive Director 























 
 

To:  Andrew Weiss, Champaign Park District 
 
FROM: Jeff Marino, AICP 
 
DATE: October 17, 2023 
 
SUBJECT: Marathon Oil Pipeline Trail – history and status 
 
The City of Champaign Staff has been coordinating with the Developer and Property Owner of 
the Legends of Champaign Subdivision for the construction of a multi-purpose trail through the 
Marathon Oil Pipeline Easement, which runs along the west side of the Legends of Champaign 
Subdivision. 
 
The provisions for the development were originally outlined in the 2006 Annexation Agreement, 
which outlined a provision for a 10-foot multi-use trail to be constructed by the developer in the 
Marathon Oil Easement running the length of the property.   Additionally, the annexation 
agreement had an attached Area General Plan, which showed the location of the 10-foot multi-
use path running the length of the property.  Subsequent to the approval of the Annexation 
Agreement and Area General Plan, there was a Preliminary Plat in 2006, which showed the 10-
foot multi-use trail that the developer was going to construct. 
 
In 2007, the developer submitted a Final Plat for Phase 1, which committed the developer to the 
construction of the infrastructure improvements that were approved in the Preliminary Plat.  In 
conjunction with the approval and recording of this Final Plat, the Developer bonded for the 
public infrastructure improvements including the 10-foot trail in the Marathon Oil Easement. 
 
The Champaign Park District was included on the review of the Preliminary Plat, and in 2008 the 
Park District, Marathon Oil Pipeline, and the City of Champaign all signed a memorandum of 
understanding for the approval process of a new trail constructed in the Pipeline Easement. 
 
The City of Champaign also adopted formal code language the required any future development 
adjacent to the Pipeline Easement to design and construct a 10-foot-wide trail in the easement at 
the developer’s expense. 
 
Around this time, the Park District constructed a 10-foot multi-use trail in the Pipeline easement 
between Kirby Avenue and Windsor Avenue. 
 
Subsequent to all of the trails being planned and constructed, the City and the Park District 
jointly adopted the 2011 Trails Plan, which identified and formally called out the Marathon Oil 
Pipeline Trail as a regional trail in the future. 
 
When a bond is approved, the Developer typically has two years to construct and install the 
public infrastructure associated with the bond.  In this case, the bond was approved in 2007; 



 2 

however, the Developer never installed the trail.  The Developer built out the subdivision, selling 
lots, and constructing residential units over time. 
 
In 2019, Regency Multi-family was looking to add more units in the area, and they purchased 
Phase 2 and 3 from the original Developer, Bill Peifer.  As a result of this transaction, the City 
revisited the multi-use trail status with Bill Peifer, and Bill expressed an interest in getting this 
wrapped up.  The City initiated conversations with Marathon to start the review and approval 
process for allowing the trail to be constructed.  Bill hired a civil engineer to design the trail at 
this time. 
 
In 2022, the City and Marathon continued to review the details of the approval process with a set 
of working construction documents for the trail.  Marathon proposed revisions to the design of 
the trail.  In early 2023, Marathon agreed to approve the location and design of the trail in the 
easement, if the guy wires that were located in the easement to support the netting structures for 
the driving range at the Legends of Champaign Gold Course were removed.   
 
Regency Multi-Family has agreed to relocated the guy wires in November 2023, when they take 
down the nets for the season, which would allow Marathon to give final approval on the plans for 
the trail.  This would also allow Bill Peifer to construct the regional trail, which will connect 
immediately to the trail on the north side of Curtis Road, and will link into the trails at Carle at 
the Fields.  Eventually, this will provide a critical link to the trails the Park District constructed 
between Kriby and Windsor, and provide a trail network that runs throughout the south and west 
parts of the City of Champaign. 
 
 
 
 


	10.25.23 Special Meeting Agenda
	i3 Easement Request Memo
	Exhibit - Easement
	Exhibit - Legal Description
	Exhibit - Plat

	Resolution, Shannon Walter, Memo
	Exhibit - Resolution

	Heritage Park Project Memo
	Exhibit - Site Plan

	Foundation Director Appointee Memo
	Exhibit - Resolution

	Ordinance No 672
	Pipeline Trail Memo 
	Exhibit A
	Exhibit B
	Exhibit C
	Exhibit D




